Middle Georgia State College Faculty Senate AY 2014-2015
Minutes of Meeting No. 3
PSC 112, Macon Campus
Friday, October 3, 2014

Present:

Mr. Charlie Agnew, Associate Professor of Art

Dr. Charla Baker, Assistant Professor of Mathematics.

Dr. Patrick Brennan, Chair of the Faculty Senate, Associate Professor of English
Dr. Gaston Brouwer, Associate Professor of Mathematics

Dr. Jeffrey Burne, Professor of Biology

Dr. Sharon Colley, Parliamentarian of the Faculty Senate, Associate Professor of English
Dr. Javan Frazier, Associate Professor of History

Dr. Michael Gibbons, Assistant Professor of Sociology

Mr. Michael Hammock, Assistant Professor of Mathematics

Dr. Benita Muth, Associate Professor of English

Dr. John Pattillo, Recorder of the Faculty Senate, Associate Professor of Biology
Dr. Chip Rogers, Vice-Chair of the Faculty Senate, Associate Professor of English
Mr. Kirby Swenson, Assistant Professor of Biology

Ms. Lisa Henry, Assistant Professor of Air Traffic Management

Dr. Greg George, Associate Professor of Economics

Dr. Anthony Narsing, Associate Professor of Management

Dr. Randy Spaid, Associate Professor of Education

Ms. Charlotte Costello, Assistant Professor of Nursing

Dr. Lawanda Greene, Assistant Professor of Nursing

Dr. Darcy Sun, Assistant Professor of Health Services

Ms. Felicia Haywood, Assistant Professor of Library Services

Dr. Sydney Chalfa, Associate Professor of Theatre

Ms. Paige Crump, Associate Professor of Spanish

Mr. Martin Kehayes, Assistant Professor of Aviation Maintenance and Structural Technology

Absent:

Dr. Martiza Bell-Corrales, Associate Professor of Spanish

Dr. Robert Burnham, Professor of History

Dr. Myungjae Kwak, Assistant Professor of Information Technology
Ms. Linda Morgan, Assistant Professor of Nursing

Mr. William Perry Brown, Lecturer of Aircraft Structural Technology

Guests:

Dr. Loretta Clayton, Chair of the Academic Affairs Committee, Associate Professor of English
Dr. Kara Smith, Lecturer of History

Dr. Marti Venn, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

Mr. Michael Stewart, Assistant Vice President of Student Affairs

Ms. Jennifer Brannon,Vice President for Student Affairs

Dr. Rebecca Corvey, Dean, School of Health Sciences

Dr. Charles Matson, Chair of the Executive Committee, Associate Professor of Respiratory
Therapy



Dr. Brennan called the meeting to order at 10:00 am. Recognizing a quorum, he reminded
senators to say they their full names when speaking for the benefit of the recorder. He also
reminded the Senate of the parliamentary procedures for dealing with motions coming from the
floor. Dr. Brennan then asked for a motion to approve the Minutes of the September 05, 2014,
meeting of the Faculty Senate. Dr. Spaid made the motion, and Dr. Sun seconded. Hearing no
suggested changes. Dr. Brennan then called for a vote to approve the Minutes, and the Minutes






in the position of deciding merit raises, she would usually consider only performance over the
most recent academic year, considering how faculty members may have gone above and beyond
their normal duties. When she was a faculty member, she made sure that she documented
everything she did, and volunteered for extra duties often. Merit raises based only on faculty
performance over the previous year would make it risky for faculty to fall into a pattern of doing
the same thing year after year in periods when no merit raises were offered. She stated that she
examined the policies of several other institutions. UGA had used some of its allotted merit raise
funding to create a pool of money that could be used to address issues of pay equity and
compression. Dr. Venn stated that the Fiscal Affairs office is looking at ways to reduce salary
compression of mid-range faculty. However, the budget will continue to be constrained and will
depend on recruitment and retention. Therefore, activities that contribute to recruitment and
retention might also be considered for merit. Dr. Venn reiterated that faculty members should
make sure that they document any such activities and that they should include them in their
annual self-evaluations to make their case for merit raises. She further stated that she is willing to
meet with Diana Hall and put together clearer information on merit. She added that she is also
willing to ask Dr. Corvey to have the Dean’s Council examine the issue of merit.

Dr. Rogers asked if chairs and deans had discretion for determining the criteria for merit, or if
there was a college-wide policy in place. Dr. Venn replied that there was no college-wide policy,
and that deans and/or chairs determine the criteria for merit. She suggested that the issue could
certainly be brought up in faculty meetings for discussion within each unit. She cautioned that
she is reluctant to formulate a general policy that will reduce the flexibility that deans and chairs
have to determine how various categories should be weighted for merit. However, she added
that a faculty member who exceeded expectations in all categories and did not receive a merit
raise would certainly want to bring that up with his or her chair or dean. Dr. Pattillo then stated
his concern that it may not be reasonable to expect faculty to exceed expectations each year in
each category, especially with regards to scholarship. Dr. Venn replied that exceeding in every
category each year should not necessarily be the standard: departments might emphasize a
particular category in a given year based on departmental and institutional goals. She
emphasized that MGA is not a “publish or perish” institution, and a lack of yearly publications
should not preclude someone from receiving a merit raise



timeframe until the funding level for merit raises reaches a point where there is a reasonable
certainty of yearly merit raises. Hearing no further questions, Dr. Venn stated that she would
report back on this issue at a future meeting.



reported concern from the Natural Sciences department about an incident where a student was
found responsible and not punished, and that the professor involved felt humiliated. Having not
been directly involved in the incident, Dr. Pattillo stated that he had heard only vague details.
Mr. Stewart stated emphatically that there is always some sort of penalty if a student is found
responsible. He further stated that he walks a fine line of supporting the faculty members and
advocating for the students. In cases where there is a discrepancy between these two concerns
and a lack of sufficient documentation, the panel will often err on the side of the student.

Dr. Pattillo then asked Mr. Stewart whether there had been a faculty member on the panel during
this incident. Mr. Stewart stated emphatically that there is always a faculty member on the panel
during any hearing. As often as possible, the faculty member on the panel is from a different
department or school than the faculty member involved in the incident. Dr. Brennan then asked
what sort of evidence could be used in a case where a faculty member personally witnesses a
student cheating. Mr. Stewart stated that these cases are often the hardest to adjudicate, but that
he always advises the panel to support the statement of the faculty member. In the past, some
panels have asked for physical evidence, such as crib sheets. Dr. Stewart stated that he did not
want to put faculty in the position of having to seize and maintain such evidence. Dr. Rogers
then asked Mr. Stewart to clarify the best way to report potential violations to Student Affairs.
Mr. Stewart answered that email was the best way to contact him, and that the email should
include the name and student 1.D. number of the student. Student Affairs can then quickly check
the database to see if the incident is a first or subsequent infraction. He stated that he hopes to
have a software solution for reporting infractions in place by the end of the semester.

In regard to issues of student misconduct, Dr. Brennan asked if there had been any action on the
Chancellor’s new initiative for






Dr. Venn



